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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commission
G/F Secretariat Building

PICC Complex, Roxas Boulevard
Pasay City, 1307

The management of GMA Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached therein, for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management determines i$ necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
refated fo going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockhoiders,
has audited the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in their report to the stockholders, have expressed their
opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

< t/““
FE ﬁ%bn: GILBERTO R_BUAVIT, JR.

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

reasurer

Signed this 25" day of March 2022,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GMA Holdings. Inc.

Unit 3K, North Wing, Fairways Tower Condominium,
5th Avenue corner Mckinley Road,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company). which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the statements of comprehensive
incoime, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for cach of the three vears in the
period ended December 31, 2021, and notes to the financial statements. including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion. the accompanying finarcial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021 in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financicd Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Etltics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines. and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current petiod. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole. and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2021. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual
Report for the year ended December 3 1. 2021 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and. in doing so. consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audits. or otherwise appears to be materiafly misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs. and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or
erTor,

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identifv and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to contine
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undertying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
contro] that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. refated
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of inost significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless faw or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances. we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 13-2010 in Note 19 to
the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
management of GMA Holdings, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion. the information is faiely stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's repoit is Meynard A, Bonoen.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYOQ & CO,

i/ S
Meynidd A. B«;n»noet?J
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0110259
Tax Identification No. 301-105-435
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 000}, August 25. 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 110259-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2023 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-136-2021. November 10, 202, valid until November 9, 2024
PTR No. 8853476, January 3. 2022, Makati City

March 25, 2022
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents {Notes 7, {4 and [5) B54,510,327 P49.088.997
Accounts recetvable (Notes 14 and {5) 1,889,215 1.258.984
Other cumrent assets - 22829
Total Current Assets 56,399,542 50.370.810
Total Assets B56,399,542 P50.370.810
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
{Notes 9, 14 and [53) P851 424 P832.688
Due to selling shareholders (Notes 13. 14 and 15) 47,271,600 47.271.600
In_c__c_)me tax pavable 2}4_,243 -
Total Current Liabilities 48,357,267 48.154.288
Total Liabilities 48,357,267 48.154.288
Equity
Capital stock (Note 10} 100,000 100.000
Retained earnings (Note 10) 7,942,275 2.116.322
Unrealized gain on debt instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income - net of tax (Note §) - ~
Total Equity 8,042,275 2216522
P56,399,542 - P30.370.810

Sev aevomparing Noles to Financial Stetements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

20214 2020 2019
REVENUE .
Interest income (Notes 7 and 8) B1,739,683 £1.291.764 R2.379.912
Exercise fees (Note §) 9,346,668 2.018.049 275,991
14,086,351 3,309,813 2.653.903
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 11) 982 820 1,002,591 948.333
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 19,103,531 2,367,222 1707570
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note [2) 2,171,778 273.295 420.822
NET INCOME 7,925,753 2,033,927 1,286,748
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)
Item not to be reclussified to profic or loss in
subsequent periods:
Unrealized gain (loss) on debt instrument at
fair value through other comprehensive
inc_ome - net of tax {(Note 8) - (167.267) 1445529
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P7,925,753 B1.866.660 _P2732277
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 16) B792.58 P103.39 B128.67

Sve accompanving Notes fo Finuncial Statenieas.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021, 2020 AND 2019

Capital Stock

Unrealized Gain

(Loss) on Debt

tustrument at

Fair Value

Through Other

Retained Comprehensive
Earnings  Income - net of

{Note H) (Note 1) tax (Note 8) Total
Balance as al Junuary |, 2021 £1006,000 #2,116,322 - £2,216,522
Net income - 7,925,753 - 7,925,753
Other comprehensive loss - - — -
Total comprehensive income - 7.925,753 — 7,925,753
Cash dividends ot B1.35 per share - {2,108,000) — (2,100,000}
Balance a5 at December 31. 2021 £100,000 £7,942,275 $- £8.042,275
Balance as at January [. 2020 2100.000 P1.382.595 BLG7.2067 1.649.862
Net income - 2.033.927 - 2.033.927
Other comprehensive income - - (167.267) 1167.267)
Total comprehensive income - 2.033.927 (167.267) 1.866.660
Cash dividends 2t P0.30 per share - £ 1.300.000) - (1.360.000}
Balance as at December 31, 2020 B100.000 P2.116.322 B P2.216,522
Balance as ot January 1, 2019 RI00.000_ £2,303.847 (R1.278.262) PL[27.385
Net income - 1.286.748 - 1.286.748
Other comprehensive loss ~ - 1,445,529 1445519
Total comprehensive income - _1.286.748 1.4435.529 2.732.277
Cash dividends at BO.45 per share - £2.210.000) - (2.2H0.000)
Balance as at December 31. 2019 £100.000 P1.382.595 P167.267 B1.649.862

See vecamypunying Notes 10 Financial Siatfeiments.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2021 2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax 210,163,531 R2.5307.222 BLATST0
Adjustment for interest income (Notes 7 and §) {1,739.,683) (1.291.764) (2.379.912)
Operating income (loss) before working capital

changes 8,363,848 1015458 {672,342)
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable (638,380) {1.098.505) {79.075)

Other current assets 22,829 44,752 {35.357)
Increase in accounts payable and other current

liabilities (31,264) 203.893 232,176
Cash flows generated from (used in) operations 7,717,033 165.598 {554.598)
Interest received 1,747,832 1.437,708 2424 997
Income taxes paid (1,943,335) (277.791) {421,027
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,521,330 1,323 515 1449372
CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING

ACTIVITY
Redemption of debt instrument at fair value

through other comprehensive income {Note 8) - 21.000.000 -
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING

ACTIVITY
Pavment of cash dividends (Notes 10 and 17) {2,100,000) {1.300.000) {2.215.886)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,421,330 21,025.515 (764.514)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 49,088,997 28.063.482 28.827.996
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :

AT END OF YEAR {Note 7) B54,510,327 P40.088.997 . P28063.482

See aqevcaipanying Notes to Financial Statemenis.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

GMA Holdings. Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in. purchase or
otherwise acquire and own. hold, use. sell, assign. transfer, mortgage, pledge. exchange or otherwise
dispose real and personal property of every kind and deseription. The registered office address of the
Company is Unit 3K, North Wing. Fairways Tower Condominium, 5th Avenue corner Meckinley
Road. Fort Bonifacio. Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on February 15, 2006.

In 2007. the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs). which were listed and traded in
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) (see Note 6).

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the issuance
of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and holding of
the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. This includes maintaining the
Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as.fong as the
Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA’s shares by non-Philippine person. Any cash dividends
distributed in respect of common shares underlying the PDRs received by the Company shall be
applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and current year. A further amount
equal to the operating expenses in the preceding vear shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in excess of such requirements shall be
distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDR holders pursuant to the PDR insteument.

Since the start of its operations, the BOD has approved to pass on the entire amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without deducting the C ompany’s projected operating expenses. Such
expenses shall be covered by the interest income from the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and
previously existing investment in FVOCI (see Notes 6 and 13).

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations are adequately
presented in the statements of comprehensive income.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for issuance
in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 235, 2022,

!\)

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the
debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH) which are measured at
fair value. The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the C ompany’s
functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso. except when
otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards { PFRS). :
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Summary of Siguificant Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear, except for
the adoption of new standards effective in 2021. The Company has not early adopted any standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Unless otherwise indicated, adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

*  Amendment o PFRS 16, COFID-19-reluted Rent Concessions bevond 30 June 2021

The amendment provides relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 requirement on lease
moditications to rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. A
lessee may elect not to assess whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification if it
meets all of the following criteria:

*  The rent concession is a direct consequence of COVID-19:

*  The change in lease payments results in a revised lease consideration that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change:

*  Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
June 30. 2022; and

* There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments resulting
from the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a change that is not
a lease modification, i.e., as a variable lease payment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after Fanuary F 2021 Early
adoption is permitted.

The Company adopted the amendment beginning Janvary 1, 2021. These amendments had no impact
on the financial statements of the Company.

*  Amendments to PFRS 9. PAS 39, PFRS 7, PFRS £ and PFRS 6. lnterest Rute Benelnark
Reforin — Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting
eftects when an interbank offered rate (1BOR) is replaced with an alternative neatly risk-free
interest rate (RFR):
®  Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as
a result of [BOR reform
*  Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships
= Relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is
designated as a hedge of a risk component
*  The Company shall also disclose information about:
*  The nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial
instruments subject to IBOR reform. and how the entity manages those risks: and
= Their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates. and how the
entity is managing that transition
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The Company adopted the amendments beginning January 1. 2021, These amendments had no
impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards Issued but not vet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not vet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated. the
Company does not expect that the fiture adoption of the said pronouncements wilt have a significant

impact on its financial statements. The Company intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective.

Effective beginning on or aiier Jamuny 1, 2022

Amendments to PFRS 3. Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in [989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendiments added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3.
Business Combinutions to avoid the issue of potential *day 2" gains or losses arising for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37. Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities und Contingent Asseis or Philippine-IFRIC 21, Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2022
and apply prospectively.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.
Amendments to PAS 16, Plart and Equipment: Procecds hefore uended Use

The amendients prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property. plant and
equipment. any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead. an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items. and the costs of producing
those items, in profit or loss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January f, 2022
and must be applied retrospectively to itemns of property. plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the
amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directty refated cost approach™
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of costs divectly refated to contract activities. General and adininistrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract,
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after fanuary 1. 2022,
The Company will apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not vet fulfitled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments,

These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the C ompany.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to PFRS |. First-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting Standareds,
Subsidiary as a first-time adopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1 to
measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent. based
on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or
Joint venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.

Amendments to PFRS 9. Financial Instruments. Fees in the *10 per cent” test for
derecognition of financial liobitities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender. including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

January 1. 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Company will apply the amendments to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company.

These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact to the Company.
Amendments to PAS 11, dgricudrure, Tuxation in fuir value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude
cash tlows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of

PAS 41,

An entity applies the amendinent prospectively to fair value measarements on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1. 2022 with

eartier adoption permitted. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company.
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The amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.

Effective beginning on or after Junuary 1. 2023

Amendments to PAS |2, Deferred Tax reluted to Assets and Liabilities urising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under PAS 2. so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments also clarify that where payments that settle a Kability are deductible for tax
purpoeses. it is a matter of judgement (having considered the apphicable tax law) whether such
deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognized in the financial statements
(and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and interest expense).

An entity applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented for annual reporting periods on or after January [, 2023

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.
Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimuates

The amendments introduce a new definition of accounting estimates and clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the comrection of
errors. Also. the amendments clarify that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an
input or a change in a measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not
result from the correction of prior period errors.

An entity applies the amendments to changes in aceounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after January 1. 2023 with earlier adoption permitted. The amendrments
are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Amendments to PAS | and PFRS Practice Statement 2. Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by:

* Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant” accounting policies
with a requirement to disclose their ‘material” accounting policies. and

*  Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions
about accounting poticy disclosures

The amendments to the Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance. Meanwhile. the
amendments to PAS | are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

Early application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expected
te have a material impact on the Company.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.
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Effective heginning on or uffer January 1, 2024

Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Crurent or Non-current

The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1. Presentarion of Finaneial Statements, to
specity the requirements for classifving liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments
clarify:
= What is meant by a right to defer settlement
*  That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
*  That classification is unattected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right
* That only it an embedded derjvative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginring on or after

January 1. 2023 and must be applied retrospectively. However. in November 2021, the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) tentatively decided to defer the effective date
to no earlier than January 1, 2024,

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement. presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4. Insurcnce Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts appiies to all types of
insurance contracts (i.e.. life. non-life. direct insurance and re-insurance), repardless of the tvpe of
entities that issue them. as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that
is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4. which are
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 7 is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)

" Asimplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts

On December 15. 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from
January 1, 2023 to January [, 2025, This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-67 issued by
the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) vears after
its effective date as decided by the JASB.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2025, with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted,
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The standard is not applicable to the Company since it is not engaged in providing insurance nor
issuing insurance contacts,

Deferred effectivity

* Amendmenis to PFRS 10. Consoliduted Financial Statements. and PAS 28. Sule or Contribution
of Assets benween un finvestor und its Associute or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business. however. is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors™ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016. the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the IASB completes its broader review of
the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Adoption of these amendments are not expected to have any impact to the C ompany,

Summary efSigﬁiﬁcant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification,

An asset as current when it is:

*  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:
*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading:
= Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period: or

* Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

A hability is current when:

*  [tis expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle:-

* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* It is due to be settled within twetve months after the reporting period: or

*  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the fiability for at least twelve months

atter the reporting period.
The Company classities all other assets and Habilities as noncurrent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurtent.

Fair Valye Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a tiability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
efther:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability: or
* In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability.
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or lability. assuming that market participants act in their best
economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Company”s financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest
tevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recuring basis. the
Company determines whether transfets have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurements. At each reporting date. the management analvzes the movements in the values of
assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or reassessed as per the Company s
accounting policies. For this analysis. the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation o contracts and other relevant
documents,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy.

Details as to how the fair value of assets and liabilities are measured are provided in Note 15,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-termn. highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity,
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Financial Assets

Dute of Recognition of Financiul Assets. The Company recognizes financial assets in the statement
of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Initiul Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified. at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost. FVOCI and fair vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient. the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus. in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under PFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
OCL it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1Y on

the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referved to as the SPPI test and is performed at
an instrument level,

The Company’s business mode! for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows. selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date. je..
the date that the Company commits to purchase or self the asset.

The Company has no financial assets at FVTPL as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

* Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

* Financial assets at FVOCT with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

= Financial assets designated at FVOC] with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

» Financial assets at FVTPL

The Company’s financial assets are under the financial assets at amortized cost and financial assets at
FVOC! with recycling of cumulative gains and losses classification.

v Financiol Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). This category is the most relevant to the

Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows: and

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized. modified or impaired.

As at December 31. 2021 and 2020, the Company s cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable are classified under this category.

v Financial Assets at FVOCTHDebt Instruments. The Company measures debt instewments at
FVOCT if both the following conditions are met;

*  The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling: and

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at FVOCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognized in statement of comprehensive income and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value

changes are recognized in OCIL. Upon derecognition. the cumulative fair value change recognized
in OCl is recycled to profit or loss.

The Company has no financial assets at FVOCI as at December 31. 2021 and 2020.

Derecognition of Financial Assets. A financial asset (or. when applicable a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the statement
of financial position) when:

*  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: and
*  the Company transfers a financial asset and the transfer qualify for derecognition.

The Company transters a financial asset if. and only if. it either: (a) transfers the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of the financial asset: or {b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset (the “original asset™), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash

flows to one or more recipients (the “eventual recipients™) in an arrangement that meets the following
conditions:

*  The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the original asset. Short-term advances by the C ompany with the
right of full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates do not violate
this condition,

*  The Company is prohibited by the terms of the transfer contract from selling or pledging the
original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients for the obligation to pay them
cash flows.

= The Company has an obligation to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual
recipients without material delay. In addition. the Company is not entitled to reinvest such
cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents during the short settlement
period from the collection date to the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients,
and interest earned on such investments is passed to the eventual recipients.

When the Company transfers a financial asset. it shall evaluate the extent to which it retains the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In this case:

* itthe Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. the Company shall derecognize the financial asset and recognize separately as assets or
labilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
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* ifthe Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. the Company shall continue to recognize the financial asset.

* if the Company neither transfers nor retains substantialiy all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the Company shall defermine whether it has retained contro)
of the financial asset. In this case: (a) if the Company has not retained control. it shall
derecognize the financial asset and recognize separately as assets or liabilities any rights and
obligations created or retained in the transfer: and (b} if the Company has retained control. it
shall continue to recognize the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in
the financial asset.

Impairment of Financial Assers. The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
(ECLs) for all debt instruments not hield at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and alf the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive. discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of coliaterat held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a t2-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. a foss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining 1ife of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL),

For cash and cash equivalents and debt instrument at FVOCI. the Company applies the low credit risk
simplification. The Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit
risk based on the external credit ating of the debt instrument. 1t is the Company”s policy to measure
ECLs on such instruments on a {2-month basis. However. when there has been a significant increase
in credit visk since origination, the loss allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

For trade-related accounts receivable, the Company applies a simplified approach in caleulating
ECLs. Therefore. the Company does not track changes in credit risk. but instead recognizes a loss
allowance based on tifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience. adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For other receivables. the C ompany applies
the general approach and calculates ECL based on the | 2-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs. depending

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on the financial instruments since initial
recognition,

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash tlows.

Einancical Liahilitics

Initicl Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, foans and borrowings. payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair vatue and. in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

As at December 31. 2021 and 2026, the Company s accounts pavable and other current Habilities
(excluding deferred output VAT and withholding tax payable) and due to selling shareholders are
included under this category.

The Company has no financial liabilities at FVPL or derivative liabilities designated as hedging
instruments.

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classiftcation as described below.

Puyables. After initial recognition, payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as
well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees

or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as interest expense in
the statement of comprehensive inconte.

Derccognition. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Habilitv is
discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantiatly different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original fiability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrving amounts is recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currenthy enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settte the liabilities
simultaneously. The Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable ri ght of offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business. event of
default. and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and all of the counterparties.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets are recorded at cost. Other current assets include prepatd taxes and input value-

added taxes {(VAT). Prepaid taxes represent taxes that are deductible from the Company’s income tax
pavable.

Equity

Cupitul Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred

directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds,
net of tax.

Retained Earnings. Retained eamings represent the Company’s accumulated earnings. net of
dividends declared.

Dividends, The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distribution to its equity holders when
the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As
per the corporate laws in the Philippines. a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the BOD.
A corresponding amount is recognized directly in the equity. Dividends for the vear that are
approved after the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date,




Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when controf to the serviees are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those services. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements sgainst specific
criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has generafly concluded that it
is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by mansferring a
promised service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the service. A
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue
recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Exercise Fees. Revenue is recognized at a point in time upon conversion of PDRs to common shares.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues. taking into account the effective yield on the
asset.

Expenses
Expenses presented as “Operating expenses” account in the statement of comprehensive income are
recognized as incurred.

Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured af the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted as at reporting date.

Current tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or
foss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences at
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date. '

Deterred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carnvforward benefits of
€XCess iminimum corporate income tax {MCIT) over regular corporate income tax {RCIT) and net
operating loss carrvover (NOLCO). to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of excess
MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

*  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the
time of the fransaction. atfects neither the accounting income nor taxable profit or loss; and

*  Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utitized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has bectane probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. except:

*  When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction.
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controtled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates applicable to the vear when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled. based on tax rates and tax laws that have been to be énacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority,

Income tax relating to OCl is recognized in OCI section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Value-added Tux (VAT Revenues, expenses. and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from
purchases of goods or services (input VAT). the excess is recognized as payable in the statement of
financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds
VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the
statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to. the taxation authority is presented as part of
“Other current assets™ or part of “Accounts payable and other current liabilities™ accounts in the
statement of financial position, respectively,

Deferred Output VAT, Deferred output VAT represents the output VAT from sale of services that are
not yet collected. Deferred output VAT is recognized as part of "Accounts payvables and other current
liabilities™ account in the statement of financial position.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the vear by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear. The Company has no dilutive potential
common shares outstanding. therefore, basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS.

Provisigns

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where.
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. [f the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
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the time value of money and. where appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting
is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies :

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements unless the possibifity of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the C ompany’'s financial pesition at
the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post vear-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material,

L1

Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets. labilities. income and expenses
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical expetience and other
factors. including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under the
circumstances.

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at reporting date. that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are discussed befow. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising bevond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assuwnptions when these oceur.

Estimating Redlizability of Deferred Income Tux Assets. The Com pany’s assessment on the
recognition of deferred income tax assets on carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT is
based upon the likely timing and level of forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods. This
forecast is based on the Company s future expectations on revenue and expenses,

The Company did not recognize deferred income tax assets amounting to 3,520 and
£39.799 as at December 31. 2021 and 2020. respectively as management believes that sufficient

taxable profit will not be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utifized
{see Note 12),

Philippine Deposit Receipts
On July 30. 2007 and August 21. 2007, the Company issued 822.115.000 and 123.317.000 PDRs

relating to GMA shares, respectively. Total number of issued PDRs is 945.432.000 for a
constderation of B8.50 per share or £8.036,172.000.
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Each PDR grants the holders. upon paviment of the exercise price and subject to certain other
conditions, the delivery of one GMA share or the sale of and defivery of the proceeds of such sale of
one GMA share. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered by
the PDRs. The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA shares.

The GMA shares are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged in mass
media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons other than Philippine nationals. The
PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30. 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time from said
date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares received by the
Company shall be applied toward the operating expenses of the C ompany for the current and
preceding years. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding vear shall be set
aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding years. Any amount in excess of the
aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be distributed to
PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received by the
Company.

Upon exercise of the PDRs. an exercise price of P0.05 (VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by the
PDR holders. The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees” account in the statement of
comprehensive income. Exercise fees amounted to £9.35 million, £2.02 million and £0.28 million in
2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Immediately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additional issuances described above. GMA.
to which the Company is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Company in relation
te which the PDRs were issued. For as long as the PDRs are not exercised. the shares underlying the
PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of, and owned by the C ompany. and all rights
pertaining to these shares. including voting rights, shall be exercised by the Company. The
obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the right contained in the PDRs
are secured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on behalf of each holder of a
PDR over the GMA shares.

At any time after the PDR offering, a GMA shareholder may. at his option and from time to time,
deliver shares to the Company in exchange for an equal number of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding PDR option
price.

The following are the details and movements of the PDRs and the underlying GMA shares for the
years ended December 31:

PDRs Number of Shares
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance at hegiimihg of vear £5,800,916,800 26.185.133.350 682,460,800 T27.665, 100
Exercise of PDRs t1,779,605,492)  (384.236.550)  (209,365,352) (432043000
Balance at end of vear 4,021,311,308 P5.200.916.800 473,005,448 682,460,800

On March 26. 2021, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of
P1.35 per share totaling #909.9 miilion. in relation to dividends dectared by GMA to all shareholders
of record as at April 22, 2021, These were remitted to the PDR holders on May 10,2021,

On August 10. 2020. the Company”s BOD has approved to purchase and acquire PDRs issued by the
Company at P4.55 per share but the PDR holders did not avail on the offer.
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OnJdune 9, 2020, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of
P0.30 per share totaling B216.6 mitlion, in relation to dividends declared by GMA to all shareholders
of record as at June 24, 2020, These were remitted to the PDR holders on July 16. 2020,

On March 29, 2019, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distsbution to PDR holders of
P05 per share totaling 329.2 mitlion. in relation to dividends declared by GMA to alf shareholders
of record as at April 22, 2019, These were remitted to the PDR holders on May 15, 2019.

The BOD approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount pf e cash dividends received from
GMA without deducting the Company’s 2021. 2020 and 2019 projected operating expenses on
March 26, 2021, June 9, 2020 and March 29, 2019, respectivelv. Such expenses shall be covered by
the interest income from the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and previously existing
investment in FVOCI. Accordingly. the entire amount of the rash dividends received from GMA
were remitted to the PDR holders.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

] 2021 2020
Cash on hand and in bank P7,189,453 ROO7,104
Short-term deposits 47,320,874 48.181.893

B34,510,327 P49.088.997

Cash in bank earns interest at bank deposit rate. Short-term deposits are made for varving periods of
up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. and earn interest
at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income eamed from cash in bank and short-term deposits amounted to B1.74 million,
PLtd million and 1.25 million in 2021. 2020 and 2019, respertively.

Debt Instrument at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensiv_e Intome

In 2014, the Company purchased at par a ten-year Union Bank of the Philippines (UBP) Tier Note
with a face value of P21.00 million bearing a fixed interest rafe of 5.38% from the Ist to the 21st
interest payment dates and an interest rate based on the five year (5Y) PDST-R2 plus 196 basis point
{bps) from the 22nd interest payment date to the last interest payment date. The interest is payable
quarterly. The maturity date of this note is on February 20, 2025,: However. on February 20, 2020,
the issuer, UBP. redeemed the note at face amount plus the interest eamed and accrued on the note.

The movements in this account are as follows:

2021 2020
Cost :
Balance at beginning of vear : B B21.000.000
Disposal during the year ' 21.000.000
Balance at end of vear ' : - -
Cumulative unrealized gain (loss) on debt
instrument at FVOCI
Balance at beginning of vear : - 238,953
Unrealized gain {loss) during the vear - {238.953)
Balance at end of vear : - -
P P
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Movements in the “Unrealized gain (loss) on debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income - net of tax™ account. presented under equity. as at December 31, 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

2021 2020

Balance at beginning of vear i R167.267
Unrealized gain (loss) due to changes in fair value

of debt instrument at FVQC] {238.93%)

Tax impact (Note 12) - 71.686

- {167.267)

Balance at end of vear P— P-

Interest income earned from the UBP Tier Note amounted to Bnil million. RO.15 million, and £1.13

million in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

9. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

2021 2020

Accounts pavable
Third party P76,723 B79.071
Related party (Note 13) - 104314
Accrued protessional fees (Note 13) 578,408 563,400
Deferred output VAT 196,301 127.903
Withholding tax pavable ~ 3.000
P851,424 £882.688

Accounts payvable. accrued expenses and withholding tax pavable are noninterest-bearing and are
normally settled within the next financial year. Accrued expenses represent audit fees, retainer fees.

trust fees and miscellaneous expenses.

10. Equity

a. Capital Stock

The Company has 10.000 authorized. issued and outstanding common shares with
B10.00 par value per share. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the totaf number of shareholders

is seven {7).

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with the

SEC as required by Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68:

Authorized Number
Number of Issued [ssue’
Date of SEC Approval of PDRs PDRs Offer Price
July 30, 2007 943,432 000 945,432 000 £8.50

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020. the total number of PDR holders. which includes Philippine

Centrat Depositary Nominee Corporation, is 148 and 151, respectively.

R
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b. Retained Eamings

On March 26, 2021. the BOD approved the Company”s declaration and distributien of cash
dividends amounting to £2.10 million to all stockholders of record as at April 22,2021 and were

paid on May 18, 2021.

On April 13.2020. the BOD approved the Company”s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to £1.30 million to all stockholders of record as at April 27,2020 and were

paid on June 2. 2020.

On March 29, 2019, the BOD approved the Company s declaration and distribugion of cash
dividends amounting to £2.21 milfion to all stockholders of record as at April T2 2019 and were

paid on May 14, 2019,

I'1. Operating Expenses

2021 2020 2019

Professional fees B535,000 £3515.000 £475.000
Listing fees 410,019 396,876 305,412
Taxes and licenses 21513 36,965 36.029
Qthers 16,288 33.750 43,392
' £982,820 £1.002,591 £948.333

12. Income Taxes

Provision for income tax as shown in the statements of comprehensive income consists of the

following:

2021 2020 2019
Final tax on interest income P103,972 R170.360 £415.302
RCIT 2,073,806 102.935 -
MCIT - - 15,520

B2,177,778 P273.205 R§20.822

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at statutory income tax rate to provision
for income tax as shown in the statements of comprehensive income is summarized g follows:

2021 2029 2019
Pravision for income tax
computed at statuatory
income tax rate of 25% £2.525,883 Ba92. 167 P512.271
Income tax effects of:
Interest income subjected to final :
tax (330,949 {217.169) {798.672)
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 34,279 - 134,935
Movement in unrecognized
deferred tax assets (34,279 (201.703) 52288
Adjustment to current income tax :
due to change in tax rate (17,156) - -
B2,177,.778 P373.205 PA20,822
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Deferred Tax Assets
The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:

2021 2020

MCIT B5,520 B39.799
NCLCO - -
P5,520 £39.799

As at December 31. 2021, MCIT amounting to 3,520 can be claimed as deduction from RCIT with
carryforward benefit up to December 31, 2022.

The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:

2021 2020

NOLCO: '

Balance at beginning of vear £ P672.342

Application - {672.342)

Balance at end of vear P P
——

Balance at beginning of year B39,799 £39.799

Expiration (34,279 -

Balance at end of vear ' B5,520 B39.799

Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act

President Rodrigo Duterte signed into law on March 26, 2021 the Corporate Recovery and Tax
Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act to attract more investments and maintain fiscal prudence
and stability in the Philippines. Republic Act (RA) 11534 or the CREATE Act introduces reforms to
the corporate income tax and incentives systems. It took effect 15 days after its complete publication
in the Official Gazette or in a newspaper of general circulation or April 11, 2021

The following are the key changes to the Philippine tax faw pursuant to the CREATE Act which have
an impact on the Group:

* Reduction in the RCIT rate from 30% to 20% for entities with net taxable income not exceeding
B5.0 million and with total assets not exceeding £100.0 million (excluding the value of land on
which the business entity’s office, plant and equipment are situated):

* Reduction in the RCIT from 30% to 23% for all other corporations; :

Reduction in the MCIT rate trom 2% to 1% of gross income for 3 years ot until June 30. 2023

and

*  Repeal of the imposition of 10% improperly accumulated eamings tax (IAET).

Applying the provisions of the CREATE Act. the Company has been subjected to the fower RCIT

rate of 20% of taxable income or the reduced MCIT rate of 1% of gross income. effective J uby 1.
2020.

The Company recognized in its financial statements as at and for the vear ended December 31, 2021.
a reduction in Provision for income tax - current to £1 7.156 pertaining to the change in tax rate for
the year ended December 31, 2020,

RN
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Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one pany has the ability, directly and indirectly, to controt the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

The Company has an approval requirement such that material eelated party transactions {RPTs)} shall
be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee (the Committee) and submitted to the
BOD for approval. Material RPT's are those transactions that meet the threshold value amounting to
ten percent (10%) or higher of the Company’s total assets based on its latest audited financial
statements either individually, or in aggregate over a twelve (12)-month period with the same related
party.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

There have been no guarantees provided or recoveresl for any related party receivables or payables
and settlements occur in cash. The Company’s financial statements inchude the following amounts
resulting from the transactions with related parties as at December 31

Amount’Volume Outstanding

Category Year of Tramsactions Pavable  Temms Condiions

Shareholders ' )

Portion of proceeds retained 2021 B 247271600 On demand upon Unsceured
from the issuance of PDRs 2020 - 47.271.600 exercise of PDRs,

nointerest-hearing

Formrard}

Belo, Gozon, Eima Law Firm N - £28.400  On demand. noninterest- Unsecured
{sce Note 9) 220 $0.000 428 4 bearing

GMA Network, Ine. 2021 104,314 ~On demand, nominterest- (Unsecured
(see Note ) 2000 194344 045314 hearing

The outstanding balance of “Due to selling shareholders™ account in the statements of financial
pusition pertains to the portion of the original proceeds from the issuance of PDRs retained by the
Company as the PDR issuer in consideration for the rights granted under the PDRs equivalent to
B0.05 per PDR. This amount will be used for the liquidation of expenses related to the issuance of
the PDRs. Any excess is to be remitted to the selling shareholders.

The outstanding payable to GMA pertain to reimbursable charges on professional fees paid on behalf
of the Company.

There is no compensation provided to the Company s key management personnel.

. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company”s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to finance the Company s operations. The Company has other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable, accounts pavable and other current
fiabilities {excluding deferred output VAT and withhelding tax payable) and due to selling
shareholders. which arise directly from its operations.
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The main risks arising from the Company’s financial statements are as follows:

*  Liyuidity Risk. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company Ty eTKeTmeT
difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments from financial instruments,

" Credit Risk. Credit risk arises from default of the counterparty.
The BOD reviews and approves the Company s objectives and policies.

Liquiditv Risk

The Company’s objective in liquidity management is to ensure that the Compary has sufficient
liquidity to meet obligations under normal and adverse circumstances and is able1o take advantage of
investment opportunities as they arise.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from opevaiions, and
interest income from cash and cash equivalents and debt instrument at FVOCH to meet fts short-term
liquidity needs. The Company likewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments:md
arrangements to broaden the Company’s range of tinancing sources.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used fir liquidity

risk management purposes and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted pavRIENts as at
December 31:

2021
More than
On Demand 3 1o 12 Months I vear Total
Firancial assets at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents P54,510,327 B P 4,510,327
Accounts receivable 1.889.213 - - 1,589,215
56,399,542 - 56,399.542
Loans and borrowings
Acepunts payvable and other current
liabilities® 655,123 - - 635,123
Due 1 selling sharcholders 23,616,328 23634712 - 47,271,600
o 24,271,951 23654772 - 41,926,723
Liquidity portion {gap) o P32,127,591 #23,634,772) B 8,472,819
Hoxchuding doferved owpur VAT and withhol g tox paauble umounting to £ 196,307,
2020 .
Mere than
Or Pemand 3 1o £2 Months 1 sear Total
Financial assets at amortized cost . o
Cash and cash equivalents £49 088997 B B0 MONRBYYT
Accounts receivable 1.258.984 - - 1238984
Financial asset at FVOCT
Debt mstrument at FVOC] — . 0
' 3347981 50347.981
Loans and borrowings
Accounts payvable and other current
liabiitios® 746.785 - - 746785
Due to selling shareholders i3, 148,360 3123040 -- 47.271 640
' [3.895.345 34123040 - 48018383
Liquidity portion igap) P36.452 630 (B34 123 040 B: 21329596
Phaecluding detirved otpa U amenitissg e PE33 02,
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Credit Risk

With respect to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents. accounts recejvable and debt
security, the Company's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty. The
maximum exposure of accounts receivables and debt security is equal to their camryving amounts. For
cash and cash equivalents. the maximum exposure is B54.02 million and B48.58 million as at
December 31. 2021 and 2020, respectively, or the carrying amount less insured amount by the
Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation equivalent to the actual cash in bank balance to a maximum
of P0.50 million per depositor per bank. It is the Company’s policy to enter into transactions with a
diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk. The
Company has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and management of credit
exposures. The Company will make provisions. when necessary, for potential losses on credits
extended. The Company does not require any collateral for its financial assets,

As at December 31. 2021 and 2020, the financial assets are generally viewed by management as good
and collectible considering the credit history of the counterparties. No financial assets were identified
by the Company as past due or impaired financial assets as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Credit Quality of Financial Assets

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents {excluding cash on hand), other receivables and debt
instrument at FYOCT are grouped under stage 1 assessment as at December 3 1. 2021 and 2020,
These are financial assets that are considered current and up to 30 days past due. and based on change
in rating. delinquencies and payment history, do not demonstrate significant increase in credit risk.
All of the Company’s financial assets are considered high grade since these are from counterparties
who are not expected to default in settling their obligations.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains 2 strong

credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it. in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the C ompany may adjust the

dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing debts, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the three years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019,

The Company”s capital management is undertaken by GMA. The Company’s capital includes the
total equity, before other comprehensive income, which amounted to 8.04 million and 2.22 million
as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements,

. Fair Value Measurement

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable. Accounts Pavable and Other Current Eiabilities
{excluding Deferred Output VAT and Withholding Tax Pavable) and Due to Selling Shareholders
The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-
term maturities of these financial instruments.
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16. Basic/Dituted Earnings Per Share Computation

Basic:diluted EPS is computed as follows:

2021 2020 2019

Net income attributable to equity holders (a) P7,925733  £2.033,927 £1.286,748
Common shares issued at beginning and end

of vear (b) 10,000 10.000 10,000
Basic/diluted earnings per share (a/h) £792.58 £203.39 P128.67

The Company has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding therefore basic EPS is same as
diluted EPS.

17. Note to Statements of Cash Flows

Changes in liability arising from a financing activity are as follows:

2021 2020
Dividends payable. at beginning of year P P
Dividend declaration (Note t0) 2,100,000 1.300.000
Cash outflow (2,100,660 (1.300.000)
Dividends payable. at end of vear ) P S P

18. Events after the Reporting Period

Cash Distribution and Dividends
On March 25. 2022. the Company s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of

R1.45 per share in relation to dividends declared by GMA to all shareholders of record as at
April 25, 2022 and will be paid on May [8. 2022.

On the same date, the BOD approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash dividends
received from GMA without deducting its operating expenses and approved the use of the interest
income from its cash and cash equivalents to cover for these expenses. Further. the BOD approved
the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends amounting to R7.9 million to all
stockholders of record as at April 25, 2023,

19, Supplementary Tax Information Required Under Revenue Reguiation's (RR} 15-2610

[n compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 13-2010. hereunder are the information on taxes
and license fees accrued and paid during the taxable vear. '

L

IR EE



1

12

h
1

The Company reported and/or paid the following tvpes of taxes in 2021

VAT
The Company’s sales and receipts are subject to output VAT while its purchases fram other

VAT-registered individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT. The VAT rateis 12%.
a.  Net sales/receipts and output VAT declared in the Company’s VAT returns

The Company is a VAT-registered Company with output VAT declaration of #1053.202 for the
vear based on the gross receipts of exercise fees of P8.776.865 as included in the~Exercise fee”
account in the statement of comprehensive income.

b, Tnput VAT

Balance at January 1, 2021 P19.860
Current vear’s domestic purchases for services 49,340
Total input VAT 69,200
Applied against output VAT {69.200)
Balance at December 31, 2021 P

Other Taxes and Licenses :
All other local and national taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2021 consist 6f:

Local taxes and license fees R2EOL3
Registration fees 300
21513

Withholding Taxes
Withholding taxes paid and-or withheld for the vear ended December 31, 2021 consist of

Final withholding tax B29.788.750
Expanded withholding tax - 36.700
PI9825.450

Tax Assessments and Cases
As at December 31, 2021, the Company has no final tax assessments and cases pending before the

Bureau of Intemal Revenue (BIR). Likewise. the Company has no other pending tax cases outside
the administration of the BIR as at December 31, 2021,




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GMA Holdings, Inc,

Unit 3K. North Wing. Fairways Tower Condominium.
3th Avenue corner Mckinley Road.

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. the financial statements of GMA
Holdings. Inc. as at December 31,2021 and 2020. and for each of the three years in the pertod ended
December 31, 2021 and have issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2022, Our audits were made for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules
listed in the Index to the Supplementary Schedules are the responsibiliy of the Company’s management,
These schedules are presented tor purposes of complving with the Revised Securities Regulation Code
Rule 68, and are not part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statemenss and. in our opinion, fairly state,
in all material respects, the financial information required to be set Torth therein in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CQ.

b S
Meynédd A, Bouoexﬁ
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0110239
Tax ldentification No. 301-105-435
BOAPRC Reg. No. 0001. August 25, 2021, valid until April 15. 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 110259-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2023 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-136-2021. November 10, 2021, valid until November 9. 2024
PTR No. 8853476 January 3, 2022, Makati City

March 23,2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GMA Holdings, Inc.

Unit 3K North Wing, Fairways Tower Condominium,
Sth Avenue cormner Mckinley Road,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of GMA
Holdings. Inc. (the Company) as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for each of the three vears in the
period ended December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2022. Our audits
were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators. including their definitions. formulas,
calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users. are the responsibitity of the
Company’s management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating
performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is presented for the purpose of
complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Cominission. and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with
PFRS. The components of these financial soundness indicators have been traced to the Company’s
financial statements as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for each of the three vears in the period ended
December 31, 2021 and no material exceptions were noted.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYOQO & CO.

b S
Mevndfd A, Bonoewﬂ
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 01 10259
Tax Identification No. 301-[05-435
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25. 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 110239-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-136-2021. November 10, 202 1. valid until November 9, 2024
PTR No. 8853476, January 3. 2022. Makati City

March 25, 2022
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
Index to the Supplementary Schedules
December 31, 2021

Schedule I:  Supplementary Schedules Required by Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, Annex
68-J

Schedule H:  Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration



SCHEDULE ]

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Supplementary Schedules Required by Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68,
Annex 68-J
December 31, 2021

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Amount shown in
the statements of Income received

Name of issuing entity and association of each issue financial position and accrued

Cash and cash equivalents ) '
Cash on hand 5.000 P
Cash in bank - Union Bank of the Philippines 7.184.453 6.099
Total cash on hand and in banks 7.189.453 6.099
Cash equivalents - Unicapital, Inc, 26.002 956 1,645,134
Cash equivalents - Abacus Capital & Investment Corp. 21227918 88.450
Total cash equivalents _ 47320874 1.733.584

P54.5 10.327 B1.739.683

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income L _ P

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholders (Other Than Related Parties)

Deductions
MName and Balance as at Amount Amaotue Balance as at
desianation January 1, 2021 Additions coliccted  written off Current Noncurrent Becember 31, 2021

Not Applicable: The Company has no receivable from directors. officer. employees, related parties and
principal stockholders (other than related parties) as at December 31, 2021,

Schedule C. Amounts of Receivables from Related Parties which are Eliminated durmo
Consolidation of Financial Statements

Deductions
Name and Badance as at Amount Amount Balance as at
designation January [ 2021 Addittons collected written off  Current  Newcurrent December 31, 2021

Not Applicable: The Company has no receivable from refated parties which are consolidated as at
December 31, 2021,




Schedule D Long-Term Debt

Amount shown under caption

Amount  ~Current portion of long-term
Title of issue and type of authorized  debt” in related statement of

obligation

SCHEDPULE!

Amount shown under
caption “Long-term debt”™
in related statement of

by indenture financial position financial position

Not Applicable: The Company has no long-term debt as at December 31. 2021,

Schedule E. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Parties)

Balance at
January 1. 202

Balance at

Name of related party December 31, 2021

Not Applicable: The Company has no long-term loan from a related party as at December 31. 2021,

Schedule F, Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Name of issuing entity of Title of issue of

Securities guaranteed by the each classof  Total amount Amount owned by

Company for which this securities  guaranteed and  person for which the Nature of
statement is filed guaranteed outstanding statemnent is filed guarantee

Not Applicable: The Company has no guarantees of securities of other issuers as at
December 31, 2021.

Schedule G. Capital Stock

Number of
shages issued
and
outstanding
as shown

Number
ol shares
reserved for

under related options.
statement of wTants. Number
Number financial converston  of shares held Directors.
of shares position and other by relaked  officers. and
Title of issue authorived caplion rights parties cmplovees Others
Common stock 10,000 10.000 - — 16,060 -

Page!3
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
As at December 31, 2021

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning B2.116.522
Net income during the year closed to retained earnings 7.925.753
Dividend declaration during the vear {2.100.000)
Unappropriated retained eamings available for dividend declaration. end P1942.275




GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Supplementary Schedule on Financial Sosndness Indicators

As at December 31, 2021

Ratio Formula 2021 2020
Current Ratio Total Current Assets divided by Total Current Liabilitics £17 .03
Total Current Assets P30.399.342
Divided by: Total Current
Liobilitics 48.357.267
Current Ratio _ £17
Asset-to-liquity Ratio | Total Assets divided by Total Equity 7.01 2273
Total Assets P36.399.342
Divided bv: Total Bquity 8.0:42.275
Assel--Equity Ratio 7.01
Drebt-to-Equity Ratio Total Debt divided by Total Equity 6.01 2L73
Total Debt R48.357.267
Divided by: Total Equity $.042.273
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 6.01
Retum on Equity Net Income divided by Average Totaf Lquity E5452% | 105.21%
Net Income B7.933733
Divided byv: Average Total Equin 5.129.399
Return on Bguity _ 134.30%
Return on Assets Net Income divided by Average Tolal Assels 14.85% 4.07%
Net Income BT.923.753
Divided bv: Average Total Assets 33.383.176
Retum on Assets 14.85%
EBITDA Margin Earnings Before Interest. Tax and Depreciation and 91.13% 60.71%
Amortization divided by Total Revenue
Earnings Defore nterest. Tax
and Depreciation and
Amertization RIO.103.531
Divided by: Total Revenue 1L080.33
EBLITDIA Margin O1.13%
Net Profit Margin Net Income divided by Total Revenue TL49% 61.45%

Net Income BI925.753
Divided by Total Revenue 11.086.351

Net Prafit Margin 71490




Quinto, Abelardo T. _
W

From: Areoia, Farley D,

Sent: Monday, April 18, 2022 11:19 AM

To: Quinto, Abelardo T.

Subject: FW: Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

From: eafs@bir.gov.ph <eafs@bir.gov.ph>

Sent: Monday, April 18, 2022 11:00 AM

To: Areola, Farley D. <FDArecla@gmanetwork.com>

Cc: Areola, Farley D. <FDArecla@gmanetwork.com>
Subject: Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

% You don't often get email from eafs@bir.gov.ph. Learn why this is important
H
Hi GMA HOLDINGS INC,

Valid files

¢ EAFS52446588961TRTY122021.pdf
¢ FAFS244658896AFSTY12202 1. pdf
s EAFS244658896RPTTY122021.pdf

Invalid file

¢  <None>

Transaction Code: AFS-0-4QXT211NOCFJ7976 HQAW3VWR 10MAMVNASQ
Submission Date/Time: Apr 18, 2022 11:00 AM
Company TIN; 244-658-896

Please be reminded that you accepted the terms and conditions for the use of this portal and expressly agree, warrant
and certify that:

e The submitted forms, documents and attachments are complete, truthful and correct based on the persanal
knowledge and the same are from authentic records;

* The submission is without prejudice to the right of the BIR to require additional document, if any, for completion
and verification purposes;

* The hard copies of the documents submitted through this facility shall be submitted when required by the BIR in
the event of audit/investigation and/or for any other legal purpose.

This is a system-generated e-mail. Please do not reply.




This =mail and its attachments may be confidential and are intendsd solely
for the use of the individual or esntity to whom it is addressed.

If you are not the intended recipisnt of this !
must take no action based upon them, nor must vou disseminate, distri
copy this e~mall, Please contact the sendeyr immediately if i
have recelved this emzil in errorw.

E-mall transmission cannot be guaranteed to be ss2oure or error-free. The
recipient should check this email and any attachments for the presence of
viruses. The Bureau of Internal Revenue does not accept liability for any
errors or omissions in the contents of this message which arise as a result
of e-mail transmission.
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SEC FORM 17-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

L. For the gquarterly period ended March 31, 2022

[E]

. SEC ldentification Number €S200602356

. BIR Tax ldentification No. 244-658-896-000

ot

4, Lxact name of issuer as specified in its charter GMA Holdings, Ine.

h

. Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation

6.0 J(SEC Use Only)

Industry Classification Code

7. Unit 3K, North Wing, Fairways Tower Condominium, 5" Avenue corner Mcekinley Road, Fort
Bonifacio, Tacuig City)
Address of principal office Postal Code: 1630

8. (632) 8§982-7777

Issuer”s telephone number, including area code

9. Not applicable
Former name or former address, if changed since last report

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC and Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Phitippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs) 406,188,349 shares

I'1. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [v'] No [ ]

12, Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17 there under
or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule [H(a)-1 there under. and Sections 26 and 141 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such
shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [v] No [ ]

(b} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [v] No [ ]
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the first quarter of 2022 with a net income of 2,50 million, 430% higher than last
year's #471 thousand net income due to higher revenues.

Revenues for first quarter of 2022 reached #3.42 million, 313% higher than last year's 2827 thousand. The
increase was brought about by higher exercise fees which increased to B2.99 miltion from £378 thousand last
year due to the conversion of 66,907,100 PDR shares to common shares as compared to 8,468,625 PDR shares
converted in same period fast year. Meanwhile. interest income earned on cash placement for the period slightly
decreased to P430 thousand versus last year's R449 thousand.

Operating expenses for the first quarter of 2022 amounted to B369 thousand versus 2309 thousand in the same
quarter o 2021, an increase of 19% mainly due to higher PSE listing fees, PDR conversion fees. and taxes and
licenses. Listing fees for the quarter amounted to 2160 thousand, higher than last year's £102 thousand. The
2481 thousand unamortized portion of listing fee was included under “Prepaid expenses and other current
assets” in the statements of financial position. Per diem accrued for the period reached B115 thousand. PDR
conversion fees increased to 6,194 versus last year's 1422, due to higher number of PDR shares converted
to common shares this year versus last year. Professional fees for the quarter amounted to B79 thousand same
as last year, which included the accrual of audit, trust and legal fees. Taxes and licenses representing
amortization of local business tax for the first quarter of 2022 increased to £8.255 from £5.787 in compatable
period.

Financial Condition
Total assets as of March 31, 2022 amounted to 259.8] million. a 6% increase versus end of 2021 figures of

P56.40 million. Accounts receivable increased by £2.41 million due to conversions of PDR shares. Prepaid
expenses and other current assets increased by B304 thousand due to the unamortized portion of listing fee

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company’s key pertormance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet PDR holders’
expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the
Company’s current and preceding vear’s operation,

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

a} ‘Trends. demands, commitments. events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s
ligquidity,

As of March 31, 2022, there were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

by Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obiigation that is material to the company, including
any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of March 31, 2022, there were no events which may trigger a direct or contingent financial obligation
that is material to the Company.



c)

d)

(4
S

B

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations}, and
other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the
reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions. arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations). and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
as of March 31,2022,

Materiat commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments and the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures,

For the period January 1, 2022 to March 31, 2022, there were no commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known frends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations,

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR holders® gxpectations
from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations with
respect to the Company s current and preceding year’s operation. As of March 31, 2021, there were no
known trends, events or uncertainties that were reasonably expected to have a material favorable or
urfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

Any significant elements of income or loss that did arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

As of March 31, 2022, there were no significant elements of income or foss that did arise from the
issuer’s continuing operations.

Causes for material changes in the Financial Statements.

Statements of Financial Position [March 31. 2022 (Unaudited) vs. December 31, 2021 (Audited)]
*  Current assets increased by B3.42 million to R59.81 million, mainly as a result of the increases in
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivables and Prepaid Expenses. _
e Current Habilities increased by P8.82 miltion to B57.17 mitlion, mainly due to Dividends Payable
and Income Taxes.

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

As of March 31, 2022, there were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or results of operations.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

March 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Unzudited Audited
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 7, 13 and 14) B55,015,597 B534,510,327
Accounts receivable (Notes 13 and 14) 4,295,305 1.889.215
Other current assets 503,952 -
Total Current Assets 59.814,854 56,399,342
Total Assets £59.814,854 56,399,542
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
{(Notes 8, 13 and 14) £1,242,853 £851.424
Due to selling shareholders (Note 14) 47,271,600 47.271.600
Dividends payable 7,960,000 -
Income tax payable 757,927 234,243
Total Current Liabilities 57,172,380 48.357.267
Total Liabilities 57,172,380 48.357.267
Equity
Capital stock {(Note 9) 100,000 100,000
Retained earnings {(Note 9) 2,542,474 7.942.275
Total Equity 2,642 474 8.042.275
£59,814,854 £56,399,542

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Three Months Ended March 31

2022 2021 : 2020
REVENUE
Interest income (Notes 73 130,268 P448 886 2413916
Exercise fees (Note 6) 2,986,924 378.064 : 166,938
3,417,192 826,950 580,854
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 10) 368,503 308.844 230216
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,048,689 518,106 350,638
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 1 1) 548,490 46,611 73,146
NET INCOME 2,500,199 471,495 : 277,492
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)
Itens 1o he reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent period:
tnrealized gain (loss) on debt instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive
income i - - (167.267)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £2,500,199 P471.495 2110225
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share {Note 15) £2250.02 £47.15 | 2775

See aceompunyving Notes to Financial Statements.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020

Unrealized Gain
{1.085) on Debt
Instrument at Fair

Value Through

Retained Other

Capital Stock Earnings Comprehensive
{Note 9) (Note 9) Income Total
Balance as at January 1. 2022 £100,000 £7,942.275 P- P8,042,275
Net income 2,500,199 2,500,199
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income - 2,508,199 - ' 2,500,199
Cash dividends (7,960,000) (7,900,000)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 £100,600 £2.542,474 £ £2.642,474
Balance as at Janvary 1, 2021 £100.000 P2.116.522 P- P2.216.522
Net income 471,495 471,495
Other comprehensive Joss - -
‘Fotal comprehensive income - 471,495 - 471,495
Cash dividends (2.100,000) _ {2.100,000)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 R100.000 P488.018 2- 588,018
Balance as at January 1. 2020 £100,000 P1,382.596 2167267 £1.649.862
Net income 277492 277.492
Other comprehensive loss {167.267) {167.267)
Total comprehensive income - 277.4932 (167.267) 1HAL226

Cash dividends

Batance as at March 31, 2020 £100.000 £1.660,088 B- P1.760,088

See aecompuanying Notes 1o Finaneial Statenents.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended March 31

2022 2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Income betfore income tax P3.048,689 £518.100 £350.638
Adjustment Tor interest income (Notes 7) (430,268) (448,887) _ {413,916)
Operating income (loss) before working capital

changes 2,618,421 69,219 {63.278)
Decrease {increase) in;

Accounts receivable (2,425,755) 237,773 (101.395)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets {503,952) (494,438) D A{372,734)
Increase in accounts payable and other current

liabilities 391,430 51,760 76,743
Cash flows provided by (used in) operations 80,144 (135,686) (460,064)
Interest received 449,932 404,910 625,084
Income taxes paid (24,806) (29,306) {69.807)
Net cash provided by operating activities 505,270 239,98 94,613

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITY
Redemption of debt instrument at fair value

through other comprehensive income - - 21.000.000
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 565,270 239,918 21,094,613
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS j

AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 54,510,327 49,088,997 28,063,482
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF PERIOD {(Note 7) £55,015,597 £49,328,915 £49,158.095

See aceompanving Notes to Financial Statements.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or otherwise
acquire and own, hold. use. sell. assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise dispose real
and personal property of every kind and description. The registered oftice address of the Company is
Unit 31X, North Wing, Fairways Tower Condominium. 5% Avenue corner McKintey Road. Fort
Bonifacio. Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) on February 15, 2006,

The accounting and administrative functions of the Company are undertaken by GMA Network, Inc.
(GMA), a company under common control,

In 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs), which were listed and traded in The
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) (see Note 6).

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the issuance
of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and holding of
the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. This includes maintaining the
Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as long as the
Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMAs shares by non-Philippine person. Any cash dividends
distributed in respect of common shares underlying the PDRs received by the Company shall be
applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and current year. A further amount
equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be set aside fo meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year, Amounts remaining in excess of such requirements shall be
distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDR holders pursuant to the PDR instrument,

Since the start of its operations, the BOD has approved to pass on the entire amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without deducting the Company’s projected operating expenses. Such
expenses shall be covered by the interest income from the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and
previously existing investment in FVOCI (see Notes 6 and 13) '

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company s limited operations are adequately
presented in the statements of comprehensive income,

b2

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for debt
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYOCT which are measured at fair value.,
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso. which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Al values are rounded to the nearest peso. except when otherwise indicated.




Statement of Compliance
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

]

Sammary of Significant Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
adoption of new standards effective in 2021. The Company has not carly adopted any standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective,

Unless otherwise indicated. adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the financiaol
statements of the Company.

*  Amendment to PFRS 16, COVID-19-reluted Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The amendment provides relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 requirement on lease
moditications to rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandentic, A
lessee may elect not to assess whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification if it
meets all of the following criteria:

*  The rent concession is a direct consequence of COVID-19;

= ‘The change in lease payments results in a revised lease consideration that is substantiatly the
same as, or less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change:

*  Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2022; and

*  There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee that applies this practical expedient witl account for any change in lease payments resulting
from the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a change that is not
a lease modification, i.e., as a variable lease payment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, Early
adoption is permitted.

The Company adopted the amendment beginning January 1, 2021, These amendments had no impact
on the financial statements of the Company.

* Amendments to PFRS 9, PAS 39, PFRS 7. PERS 4 and PFRS 16, Jnferest Rule Benclonark Reforng -

Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting

effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest

rate (RFR): _

*  Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a result
of IBOR reform

= Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships :

*  Relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a
hedge of a risk component




* The Company shall also disclose information about:

*  The nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed atising from financial instruments
subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks: and

« Fheir progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates. and how the entity is
managing that transition

The Company adopted the amendments beginning January 1, 2021, These amendments had no
impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards Issued but not yet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated. the Company
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a sighificant impact on its
financial statements, The Company intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become
effective. '

Effective beginning on or after Janary 1, 2022
*  Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Fremework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments added an exception to the recognition principle of PERS 3. Business Combinations to
avoid the issue of potential *day 2" gains or losses arising for Habilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
Philippine-IFRIC 21, Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and
apply prospectively.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

* Amendments 1o PAS 16, Plant und Equipment: Proceeds before Infended Use
The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition pecessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,

an entity recognizes the proceeds from selfing such items, and the costs of producing those items. in
profit or {oss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and
must be applied retrospectively to items of property. plant and equipment made avaifable for use on
or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendiment.

The amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company,

*  Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Costy of Fulfilling a Contract




The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is
onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach™. The costs that
relate directly 10 a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an
allocation of costs direetly refated to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract.

The amendments are effective for anaual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2022.
The Company will apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not vet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments,

These amendments are not expected 1o have any impact to the Com pany.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

e Amendments to PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting Standards,
Subsidiary ay o firsi-time adopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS | to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the
parent’s date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate OF joint
venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.

s Amendments (0 PFRS 9, Finucial Instruments, Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition
of financial Hebilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantiatly different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf, An
entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or afler the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

Januvary 1. 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Company will apply the amendments to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company.

These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact to the Company. -

*  Amendments to PAS 41, dericulture, Tavation infeir value measurementy




The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude cash
{Tows Tor taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of
PAS 41.

An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1. 2022 with earlier
adoption permitted. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company,

The amendments are not expected 1o have any impact to the Company.
Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2023

* Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liahilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under PAS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise fo equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments also clarity that where payments that settle a Hability are deductible for tax
purposes. it is a matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law) whether such
deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognized in the financial statements (and
interest expense} or to the related asset component (and interest expensel,

An entity applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented for annual reporting periods on or after January 1, 2023,

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments,
*  Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition of accounting estimates and clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors, Also, the amendments clarify that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an
mput or a change in a measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not
result from the correction of prior period errors.

An entity applies the amendments to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting

estimates that occur on or after Januacy |, 2023 with carlier adoption permitted. The amendinents are
not expected o have a material impact on the Company.

*  Amendnients o PAS | and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of decouniing Policies
The amendments provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy

disclosures that are more usetul by:

*  Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their *significant’ accounting policies with
a requirement to disclose their "material’ accounting policies, and




* Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures

The amendments to the Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance. Meanwhile, the
amendments (o PAS 1 are effective for annuat periods beginning on or after January I, 2023. Early
application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.
Effective beginning o or dfier Jainnary 1, 2024
*  Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liahilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1. Presenfation of Financied Statements, to
specily the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments ¢lart fy:
*  What is meant by a right to defer settlement
» Thataright to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
* That classification is unaffected by the likelikood that an entity will exercise its deferral right
» That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classitication

The amendments are effective tor annual reporting periods beginning on or after

Japuary 1. 2023 and must be applied retrospectively. However, in November 2021, the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) tentatively decided to defer the effective date to no earlier than
January 1, 2024,

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.
Effective heginning on or affer Junuary 1, 2025
= PFRS 17, lsurance Conftracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition
and measuwrement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS }7 will replace PFRS 4,
Iirsurance Contracts, This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance
contracts (ie., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance). regardless of the type of entities that
issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PERS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4. which are largely
based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies. PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the
general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach) )
e Asimplitied approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts




On December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PERS 17 from January 1,
2023 to January 1. 2025. This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issucd by the Insurance
Commission which deferred the implementation of PERS 17 by two (2} years after its effective date
as decided by the 1ASB.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted.

The standard is not applicable to the Company since it is not engaged in providing insurance nor
issuing insurance contacts.

Deferred effeciiviny

Amendments to PERS 10, Consoliduted Financical Statements, and PAS 28. Sule or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venfire

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves a
business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that
does not constitute a business. however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors”
interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective date
of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments untif the IASB completes its broader review of the
research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for such
transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Adoption of these amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification

The Company presents assets and Habilities in statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification.

An asset as current when it s

@ » 8

Expected to be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading:

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period: or

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is current when:

.

[ ]

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyele;

I is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months




afler the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other assets and liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent,

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability: or
¢ Inthe absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabitity.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
CCanomic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant™s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the cireumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Company’s financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as tollows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabifities

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basts, the
Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurements. At each reporting date, the management analyzes the movements in the values of
assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or reassessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.




For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the levet of the fair
value hierarchy. '

Details as 1o how the fair value of assets and Habilities are measured are provided in Note 15.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highfy liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of theee months or less
from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments
A fmancial instrament is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financinl Assels

Duate of Recognition of Financial Assets. The Company recognizes financial assets in the statement
of financial position when it becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrunient.

Initial Recognition and Measuremeni. Financial assets are classified. at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, FYOCT and fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash {fow characteristics and the Company s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient. the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus. in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under PERS 15,
Revemue from Contracts with Customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
OCT. it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at
an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business mode! determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractuat cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company comniits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company has no financial assets at FVTPL as at March 31, 2022 and December 31 L2021,

Suhsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:




Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at FVOCT with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
o Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)
» [inancial assets at FVTPL

The Company’s financial assets are under the financial assets at amortized cost and financial assets at
FVOC! with recycling of cumulative gains and losses classification.

o Finuncial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). This category is the most relevant to the
Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are niet:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assots
in order to collect contractual cash flows:; and

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recopnized in profit or foss
when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company”s cash and cash equivalents
and accounts receivable are classified under this category.

¢ Linancial Asseis of FYOC (Debit Instruments). The Company measures debt instruments at
FVOCT if both the following conditions are met:

= The financial asset is held within a business modef with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling: and

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at FVOCI, interest income. foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognized in statement of comprehensive income and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognized in OCL Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized
in OCT is recycled to profit or loss.

The Company has no financial assets at FVOCl as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021

Derecognifion of Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, when applicable a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the statement
ol financial position) when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: and
*  the Company transfers a financial asset and the transfer qualify for derecognition.
The Company transfers a financial asset if, and only if, it either: (a) transfers the contractual rights to

receive the cash flows of the financial asset; or (b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
Nows of the financial asset (the “original asset™). but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash




flows to one or more recipients (1he “eventual recipients™) in an arrangement that meets the following
conditions:

= The Company has no obligation 10 pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it collects
equivalent amounis from the original asset. Short-term advances by the Company with the
right of full recovery of the amount lent plus acerued interest at market rates do not violate
this condition.

*  The Company is prohibited by the terms of the transter contract from selling or pledging the
original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients for the obligation to pay them
cash flows.

*  The Company has an obligation to remit any cash {lows it collects on behalf of the eventual
recipients without materiat defay. In addition, the Company is not entitled (o reinvest such
cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents during the short settlement
period from the collection date to the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients,
and interest earned on such investments is passed to the eventual recipients.

When the Company transfers a financial asset, it shall evaluate the extent to which it retains the risks
and rewards of ownetship of the financial asset. In this case:

* il the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Company shall derecognize the financial asset and recognize separately as assets or
liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

* i the Company retains substantialty all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Company shall continue to recognize the financial asset.

*  ifthe Company neither transters nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the Company shall determine whether it has retained control
of the financial asset. In this case: (a) if the Company has not retained control, it shall
derecognize the financial asset and recognize separately as assets or [iabilities any rights and
obligations created or retained in the transfer: and (b) if the Company has retained control. it
shall continue to recognize the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in
the financial asset.,

Tmpairment of Financial Assets. The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
{LCL3) for all debt instrinments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash ttows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
altowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irtespective
of the timing of the defauit (a litetime ECL).

For cash and cash equivalents and debt instrument at FVOCL the Company applies the fow credit risk
simpiification. The Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit
risk based on the external credit rating of the debt instrument. 1t is the Company’s policy to measure




ECLs on sucl instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since origination, the loss allowance will be based on the litetime ECL.

For trade-related accounts receivable, the Company applies a simplified approach in caleulating
ECLs. Therefore. the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLSs at each reporting, date. The Company has established a provision
niatrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-fooking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For other receivables, the Company applies the
general approach and calculates ECL based on the 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs. depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on the financial instruments since inital
recognition.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when conteactual payments are 90 days past due,
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial assel to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial Liabilitics

Initicd Recognition and Measurement, Financial Habilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. loans and borrowings. payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

Al financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

As al March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. the Com pany’s accounts payable and other current
Habilities (excluding deferred output VAT and withholding tax payable} and due to selling
sharehotders are included under this category.

The Company has no financial liabilities at FVPL or derivative liabilities designated as hedging
instruments.

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as described below,

Puyables. Afler initial recognition, payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as
well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as interest expense in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial ltability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing fiability are substantiatly
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and




the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting of Financial fnstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis. or to realize the assets and settle the labilities
simulianeously. The Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offser if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business. event of
defauit. and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Company and all of the counterparties.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets are recorded at cost. Other current assets include prepaid taxes and input value-
added taxes (VAT), Prepaid taxes represent taxes that are deductible from the Com pany’s income tax
payable.

Lquity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued, eremental costs incurred
directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds,
net of tax,

Refuined Earnings. Retained earnings represent the Company’s accumulated earnings, net of
dividends declared.

Dividends. The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distribution to its equity holders when
the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Com pany. As per
the corporate laws in the Philippines, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the BOD. A
corresponding amount is recognized directly in the equity. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date.

Revenye

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control to the services are transferred to
the customer al an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Com pany expects to be entitled
in exchange for those services. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific
criteria to determine i it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has generally concluded that it
is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised service 1o the customer, which is when the customer obtains controf of the service, A
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue
recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Exercise Fees. Revenue is recognized at a point in time upon conversion of PDRS to common shares,
Inerest [ncome

Interest income is recognized as the interest acerues, taking into account the effective yield on the
asset.




Expenses
Expenses presented as “Operating expenses™ account in the statement of comprehensive income are
recognized as incureed,

Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered trom or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted as at reporting date.

Current tax relating fo items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or
loss. Management periodically evatuates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred Tux. Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences at
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their cartying amoumts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. carryforward benefits of
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIFY and net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income witl be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of excess
MCTT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable profit or loss; and

¢ Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wilt be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income 1ax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

*  When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
ot liability in a transaction that s not 2 business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements. when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future,




Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates applicable to the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled. based on tax rates and tax laws that have been Lo be enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset if a lepally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sante taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Income tax relating to OCl is recognized in OC! section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Value-added Tax (V.AT). Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
applicable,

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from
purchases of goods or services (input VAT). the excess is recognized as payable in the statement of
financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds
VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT). the excess is recognized as an asset in the
statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to. the taxation authority is presented as part of
“Other current assets™ or part of "Accounts payable and other current liabilities™ accounts in the
statement of financial position, respectively.

Deferred Quiput VAT, Deferved output VAT represents the output VAT from sale of services that are
not yet collected. Deferred output VAT is recognized as part of *Accounts payables and other current
labilities™ account in the statement of financial position.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear. The Com party has no ditutive potential
common shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obtigation (legal or constructive) where,
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and. where appropriate, the risks specific to the tiability. Where discounting
s used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest éxpense.
Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recogiized as ¢
separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes Lo financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.




LEvents afier the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and
disclosure of contingent assets and fiabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or Habilitics
affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under the
circumstances,

The key estimates and assumptions cancerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at reporting date, that have a signiticant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. The Com pany based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. BExisting
circumstances and assumptions about future developments however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when these occur.

kstimating Realizabilitv of Deferred Income Tux Assets. The Company’s assessment on the recognition
of deferred income tax assets on carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT is based upon the
likely timing and level of forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods, This forecast is based on
the Company’s tuture expectations on revenue and expenses.

The Company did not recognize deferred income tax assets amounting to B5,520 as at December 31,
2021 as management believes that sutficient taxable profit will not be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized (see Note 11 )

6.

l’hili[')p'i'ne Deposit Receipts

On July 30. 2007 and August 21, 2007, the Company issued 822.115.000 and 123.317.000 PDRs relating
to GMA shares, respectively. Total number of issued PDRs is 945,432,000 for a consideration of B8.30
per share or #8.036,172,000,

Each PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exercise price and subject fo certain other conditions,
the delivery of one GMA share or the sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such sale of one GMA
shave. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered by the PDRs. The
Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA shares.

The GMA shares are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged in mass
media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons other than Phitippine nationals, The PDRs
were listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time from said date. Any
cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares received by the Company shall be




applied toward the operating expenses of the Company for the current and preceding years. A further
amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding vear shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding years. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the operating expenses patd
and the operating fund for such period shall be distributed to PDR holders pro-rata on the first business
day after such cash dividends are received by the Company.

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercise price of B0.03 (VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by the
PDR holders. The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees™ account in the statement of comprehensive
income. Exercise fees amounted to 82,99 million, #0.38 million and £0.17 million for the three-month
period ended March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively,

fmmediately prior o the closing of the PDR offering and additional issuances described above. GMA. to
which the Company is affiliated. transterred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Company in relation to
which the PDRs were issued. For as long as the PDRs are not exercised, the shares undertying the PDRs
will continue to be registered in the name of, and owned by the Company, and all rights pertaining to
these shares. including voting rights, shall be exercised by the Company. The obligations of the
Company to deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the right contained in the PDRs are secured by the
Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting ot behalf of each holder of a PDR over the GMA
shures,

Atany time after the PDR offering. a GMA shareholder may. at his option and from time to time. deliver
shares to the Company in exchange for an equal number of PDRs. The exchange is based on prevailing
traded value of GMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding PDR option price.

As discussed above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows from its investment in GMA
and assumes a contractuat obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders. net of operating
expenses (a "pass-through™ arrangement). The “pass-through™ test is met because the Company (a) has
no obligation to the PDR holders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its investment in GMA, (b} is
contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in GMA other than as security to the
PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows. and (c) has an obligation to remit any cash flows
from the investment in GMA to the PDR holders without material delay.

Under the “pass-through™ test, the Company is deemed to have transferred substantially the risks and
rewards of its investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the lHabilities related to the
issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company.

The following are the details and movements of the PDRs and the undertying GMA shares for the three
months ended March 31:

PDRs Number of Shares

2022 2021 2022 2021

Balance at beginning of year  B4,021,311,317 B5.800.916.800 473,095,449 682,460,800
Exercise of PDRs (568,710,350) (71.983.313) (66,907,106} (8,468,625
Balance at end of vear B3.452,600,967 £5.728.933.488 406,188,349  673.992.175

On March 26, 2021, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of
£1.35 per share totaling 2909.9 million, in relation to dividends declared by GMA to all shareholders of
record as at April 22, 2021. These were remitted to the PDR holders on May 19, 2021,




On August 10, 2020, the Company’s BOD has approved to purchase and acquire PDRs issued by the
Company at B4.55 per share but the PDR holders did not avail on the offer.

On June 9, 2020, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of B0.30 per share
totaling £216.6 million. in relation to dividends declared by GMA 10 all shareholders of record as at June
24, 2020. These were remitted (o the PDR holders on July 16, 2020,

On March 29, 2019, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of B0.45 per share
totaling £329.2 million, in relation to dividends declared by GMA to all shareholders of record as at April
22.2019. These were remitted to the PDR holders on May 15, 2019.

The BOD approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash dividends received from GMA
without deducting the Company’s 2021, 2020 and 2019 projected operating expenses on March 26, 2021,
June 9. 2020 and March 29. 2019, respectively. Such expenses shall be covered by the interest income
from the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and previously existing investment in FVOCL.
Accordingly, the entire amount ot the cash dividends received from GMA were remitted to the PDR
holders,

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
March 31,2022 December 31, 2021
. i Unaudited Audited
Cash on hand and in bank £9.270,970 £7,189.453
Short-term deposity - 45,744,627 47,320,874
£55,015,597 P54.510,327
Cash in bank eams interest at bank deposit rate. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of up
to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates,
Interest income earned from cash in bank and short-term deposits amounted to £0.43 mitlion.
20.45 mitlion and PO.41 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectivety.
8. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

March 31,2022  December 31, 2021

Unaudited Audited

Accounts payable P14,500 P76,723
Accrued expenses:

Professional fees 772,150 578,400

Ouiput VAT - -

Deterred output VAT 456,203 196,301

Withholding tax pavable -

P1,242.853 B851.424




Accounts payable. accrued expenses, deferred output VAT ad output VAT are noninterest-beari ng and
are normally settled within the next financial year. Accrued expenses represent audit fees, retainer fees
and miscellaneous expenses.

9. Equity
a.  Capital Stock

The Company has 10,000 authorized. issued and outstanding common shares with P10.00 par vatue
per share, )

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with the SEC
as required by Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68:

Autherized Number
Number of lssued Issue/
Date of SEC Approval of Shares Shares Offer Price
July 30, 2007 945.432.000 045,432,000 B8.50

b. Retained Bamings

On Mareh 25, 2022, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends
amounting to #7.90 million to all stockholders of record as at April 25, 2022 and to be paid on May
17,2022,

On March 26, 2021, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends
amounting to 2.10 million to alf stockholders of record as at Aprit 22, 2021 and to be paid on May
£8. 2021,

On April 13, 2020, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends
amounting to 1.30 mitlion to all stockholders of record as at April 27, 2020 and were paid on June
2, 2020,

t0. Operating Ekpénses

The components of the company’s operating expenses for the three-month period ended March 31 are as

follows:

2822 2021 2020
Listing fees 160,229 P1OE,755 P99,219
Per diem 115,600 120.000 -
Professional fees 78,750 78.759 118.750
Taxes and lcenses 8,255 5,187 9,651
PDR conversion expenses 6,194 1,422 545
Transportation - 707 1,130
Miscellancous 75 423 0923

P368,503 P308.844 P230.216




11, income Taxes

Provision for income tax as shown in the statements of comprehensive income for the three month-period
ended March 31 consists of the following;

2022 2021 2020

Final tax on interest income £24.806 £29.306 B69. 807
RCIT 523,684 17.303 3,339
£548,490 46,011 B73,146

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at statutory income tax rate to provision for

income tax as shown in the statements of comprehensive income for the three-month period ended March
31 is summarized as follows:

2022 2021 2020

Provision for income tax

computed at statutory

income tax rate of 30% P P- PHOS5 101
Provision for income tax

computed at statutory

income tax rate of 20%/25% 609,738 129,526
Income tax effects of?

Movement in unrecognized

deferred tax assets (18,221) {38.026) 9,347
Interest income subjected to
final tax (43,027 {44,889 {41.392)

Expired NOLCO and MCIT - -
£548,490 P46.61 | £73,146

Deferred Tax Assets
The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Unandited Audited

MCIT P5,520 P5,520
NOLCO - -
£5,520 £5,520

As at March 31, 2022, NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable income
and RCIT due, respectively, are as follows:

Date Paid/Incurred Carryforward Benefit Up To MCIT
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2022 5,520
P5,520

The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:




March 31,2022  December 31, 2021

Unaudited Audited
NOLCO: _
Balance at beginning of year B- R
Addition - -
Application - -
Expiration — -
Balance at end of year B- ' P—
MCIT:
Balance at beginning of year B5,520 39,709
Addition - -
Expiration - (34,279
Balance at end of vear £5.520 25,520

12, Related Party Disclosures

Yarlies are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions,
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

There have been no guarantees provided or recovered for any related party receivables or payables and
setilements occur in cash. In January to March of 2021 and as at December 31, 2020, the Company’s
financial statements include the following amounts resulting from the transactions with related parties as
at March 31:

Amount/Volum
e Outstanding
Category Year of Transactions Payable Terms Conditions
Shareholders ' o
Portion of procesds 2022 £ P47.271,6800 On demand upon Unsecured
retained from the 2021 - 47,271,600 exercise of PDRs,
issuance of PDRs nointerest-bearing
Belo, Gozon, Elma Law 2022 -~ 428,400 On demand, Lnsecured
Firm noninterest-bearing
2021 - 428,408
GMA Network, Inc. 2022 - - On demand, Unsecured
noninterest-
2021 - - bearing

The outstanding balance of “Due to shareholders™ account in the statements of financial position pertains
to the portion of the original proceeds from the issuance of PDRs retained by the Company as the PDR
issuer in consideration for the rights granted under the PDRs equivalent to P0.03 per PDR. This amouat
will be used for the liquidation of expenses related to the issuance of the PDRs. Any excess is to be
remitted to the selling shareholders.




The Company’s key management personsnel are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries was
allocated 1o the Company.,

. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and debt instrument at FVOCL The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the
Company’s operations. The Company has other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts
receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding deferred output VAT) and due to
shareholders. which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial statements are as follows:

*  Liquidity Risk. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter difficulties
in raising Tunds to meet commitments from f{inancial instruments.

" Interest Rute Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

*  Credit Risk. Creditrisk arises from default of the counterparty.
The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and policies.

Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective in liquidity management is to ensure that the Company has sufficient liquidity
to meet obligations under normal and adverse circumstances and is able to take advantage of investment
opportunities as they arise.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations and
interest income from debt instrument at FVOCH to meet its short-term liquidity needs. The Company
flikewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments and arrangements to broaden the Company’s
range of financing sources.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for liquidity risk
management purposes and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments as at March
31,2022 and December 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2022 {(Unaudited)
More than

On Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 vear Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents B55.015,597 P | . 55,015,597
Accounts receivable 4,295,308 - - 4,295,305
£59,310,902 £ £ £59,310,902
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities* £786,650 £- 2 £786,650
Due to sharcholders 26,902,183 20,309,417 - 47,271,600
£27,748,833 £20,509,417 P— R48,058,250

*veluding deferved output VAT amounting (o 2456,203.




2021

‘More than

On Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total
Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents B54,510.327 P- - P54.510,327
Accounts receivable 1.889.215 - - 1,889.215
56,399,542 — e 56.399.542
Loans and berrowings
Accounts payable and other curvent
liabilities*® 655,123 - - 655,123
Due to selling shareholders 23.616.828 23,654,772 47.271.600
24,271,951 23.654,772 - 47,926,723
Liquidity portion (gap) 32,127,591 (P23.654.772) P-- £8.472.819

*fivcluding deferred ovtput VAT and withholding tax payable amounting o 21 96,301,

Credit Risk

With respect to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and debt security.
the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty. The maximum exposure of
accounts receivables and debt security is equal to their carrying amounts, For cash and cash equivalents,
the maximum exposure is 54,52 million and 254.01 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31,
2021, respectively, or the carrying amount less insured amount by the Phitippine Deposit Insurance
Corporation equivalent to the actual cash in bank balance to a maximum of £0.50 million per depositor
per bank. It is the Company’s policy to enter into transactions with a diversity of credit worthy parties to
mitigate any signiticant concentration of credit risk. The Company has an internal mechanism to monitor
the granting of credit and management of credit exposures. The Company will make provisions, when
necessary. Tor potential losses on credits extended. The Company does not require any collateral for s
financial assets.

As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the financial assets are generally viewed by management
as good and collectible considering the credit history of the counterparties. No furancial assets were
identificd by the Company as past due or impaired financial assets as at March 31, 2022 and December
3 )2

2 l . -O.‘-¢ 1 .

Credit Quality of Financial Assets
The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and standard grade as
internal credit ratings.

High Grade. This pertains to a counterparty who is not expected by the Company to default in settling its
obligations. thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes large prime financial
institutions and related parties,

Srandard Grade. Other financial assets not classified as high grade are included in this category.

The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents {excluding cash on hand), accounts receivable and
debt security as high grade financial assets as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.




The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it. in the tight of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to sharcholders, payoff existing debts, return capital to shareholders or issue new sharves.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes as at March 31, 2022 and December 31,
2021,

The Company’s capital management is undertaken by GMA. The Company’s capital includes the total
equity, before other comprehensive income, which amounted to #2.64 million and #8.04 million as at

March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

. Fair Valuee Measurement

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each financial instrument
for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable. Accounts Pavable and Other Current Liabilities
(excluding VA1) and Due to Shareholders

The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair vatues due to the short-term
maturities of these financial instruments.

A

. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share Computation

Basic/diluted EPS for the three-month period ended March 31 are computed as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Net income attributable to equity holders (a) $2.500,199 B471.495 8277.492
Common shares issued at beginning and end of vear (b) 10,000 10,000 10.000
Basic/diluted carnings per share (a/b) £250.02 £47.15 82775

The Company has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding therefore basic EPS is same as
diluted EPS.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Schedule of Financial Ratios

Financial Ratios Description March 31,2022  December 31, 2021

Unaudited Audited

Current/liquidity ratio  Current assets over current liabilities 1.05 LY7

Asset to equily ratio Total asset over total equity 22.64 701

Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities over total equity 21.04 6.01

Financial Description March 31, March 31, March 31,

Ratios 2022 2021 2020

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Return on equity  Net income over total equity 95% 80% 16%

Return on asset  Net income over total assets 4% 0.9% 0.6%

EBITDA margin  Earings before interest, tax and

depreciation and amortization over

total revenue 89% 63% 60%



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company has no other information that needs to be disctosed other than disclosures made under SEC
Form 17-C, if any.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to be
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Issuer: GMA HOLDINGS, INC,
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Certification

We FELIPE 8. YALONG. Chief Operating Officer/ Chief Financial Officer and RONALDO P.

MASTRILI_ Comptroiler of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. with SEC registration number CS200602356

with principal office at Unit 3K, North Wing, Fairways Tower Condominium, 5" Ave. corner

McKiniey Road Fort Bonifacio Taguig City), on oath state:

1) That on behalf of GMA Holdings, Inc., we have caused this Quarterly Report (SEC Form

17-Q} to be prepared,

2) That we read and understood its contents which are true and correct of my own personal

knowiedge andior based on true records;

3) That the company GMA Holdings. Inc. will comply with the requirements set forth in SEC
Notice dated June 24, 2020 for a complete and official submission of reports and/or

documents through electronic mail; and

4) That we are fully aware that documents filed online which requires pre-evaluation andfor
processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon payment of

a filing fee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this day of

APR 2,{ U

Chief Operating Officer/ Chief Financial Officer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day o

\
i

RCNALDO P. MASTRILI

Comptrolier

AR T 22 o,

affiants exhibited to me their TIN 102-874-052 (Felipe S. Yalong) and TIN 102-091-842

{Ronaldo P. Mastrili).

DO NO. | an
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, Lniit Dec. 30, 2002
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IBF Ny, 171810/1-03-22, QC
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WMOLE Compllance No. VI-0U17289, 01-24-1%
Nensingt Comm, Adm Maftar
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Balance Sheet

| -Period Ended Fiscal Yeat Fnded (Audited):
March 31, 2021 December 31, 2021

59,814,854 56,399,542

58,814,854 56,399,542

s772,380] 48,357 267

57,172,380 48,357 267

2,542,474 7,942,275

2,642,474 8,042,275

0 0

Gross Revent 3 417, 192 3 417,192 826 95{1
GrossExpe 368,503 308,844 368,503 308,844
QOther No 20 : 430,268 448,886 430,268 448 886
Other: Non@peratmg Expense 0 0 0 4
Income/ (Loss) Before: Tax 3,048,689 518,108 3,048,689 518,106
!ncome Tax Expense 548,490 48,611 548,490 46,611
2,500,199 471,495 2,500,199 471,495

1] 0 4 0

Earnings/(loss)yPer §h 250.02 47.15 250.02 47 15
Earnings!: (Loss) Pér Share 250.02 47.15 250.02 47.15

1,002.93
1,002.93 222.79

Eammg_!fﬁ( .o8s):




